RECEIVED

APR 20 2015

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GEORGETOWN COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Diane S. Goodstein, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2015-000331
Case No. 12-CP-22-1004

Nadene Holliday, Individually and as Personal Representative
of the Estate of David Holliday, ... Appellant,

vs.

Waccamaw Community Hospital and
Kent M. McGinley, M.D., ... Defendants,

of whom

Waccamaw Community Hospital is the ... Respondent.

APPELLANT'S FINAL BRIEF

Richard S. Rosen
Andrew D. Gowdown
Elizabeth J. Palmer
ROSEN, ROSEN & HAGOOD, LLC
151 Meeting Street, Suite 400
Charleston, SC 29401
(843) 577-6726 (o)
(843) 724-8036 (f)

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

Does a hospital owe a duty to its patients to carefully select and review the qualifications of physicians using its facilities?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the circuit court's grant of a motion to dismiss pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), SCRCPP, dismissing Respondent Waccamaw Community Hospital on the grounds that South Carolina does not recognize a cause of action for negligent credentialing arising out of a corporate negligence theory (R. pp. 1-2.)

On September 24, 2012, David Holliday and Appellant Nadene Holliday filed a Summons and Complaint in the Georgetown County Court of Common Pleas alleging negligence and loss of consortium against Waccamaw Community Hospital ("Hospital"), Kent M. McGinley, M D ("McGinley"), Winyah Surgical Specialists, P.A., Anthony H. deHaas, M.D., and Matthew J. Metz, M.D.¹ The claims stem from the missed diagnosis of David Holliday's gallbladder cancer by Defendant McGinley, who as a member of the medical staff was granted privileges at the Hospital where he was working as an independent contractor pathologist. The Hospital served its Answer on October 11, 2012, denying any negligence on its part.

An Amended Complaint was filed on February 13, 2013, following the death of David Holliday and the appointment of Appellant as the Personal Representative of his estate. The Amended Complaint states causes of action for wrongful death, survival, and loss of consortium for the same conduct alleged in the original Complaint. On February

¹ Winyah Surgical Specialists, P A , Anthony H deHaas, M D , and Matthew J Metz, M D were later voluntarily dismissed

19, 2013, the Hospital served its Answer to the Amended Complaint. The Hospital once again denied any negligence on its part.

On April 28, 2014, the Hospital served Appellant with a motion for summary judgment on the grounds that no actionable negligence had been established by Appellant as to any agent, servant, or employee of the Hospital. At the summary judgment hearing on June 13, 2014, counsel for Appellant conceded that Defendant McGinley was an independent contractor, and not an employee or agent, of the Hospital. Summary judgment was granted to the Hospital solely on that issue.

During the summary judgment hearing, counsel for Appellant moved to amend the Amended Complaint to conform to the evidence pursuant to Rule 15(b), SCRPC. Counsel for the Hospital objected; therefore, a hearing on the Motion to Amend to Conform to the Evidence was held on July 24, 2014. The circuit court granted the motion during the hearing.

Appellant filed her Second Amended Complaint on July 24, 2014, which contained the same causes of action as previously alleged, but included more detailed allegations about certain criminal and professional disciplinary actions taken against Defendant McGinley² and the specific duties owed by the Hospital pursuant to state law. The Hospital served its Answer to Appellant's Second Amended Complaint on August 7, 2014, again

² In October 2005, Defendant McGinley was arrested and charged with fraud and forgery for using false and fraudulent forms of identification to obtain prescription narcotics (R pp 135-136) The criminal charges were prosecuted by the Horry County Solicitor's Office After completing the Pretrial Intervention Program, Defendant McGinley sought expungement of his criminal charges The criminal charges were expunged in an Order dated January 3, 2007 Following the second amendment to Appellant's Complaint, Defendant McGinley filed a Motion to Strike, seeking an order prohibiting any reference to Defendant McGinley's arrest in the pleadings In a hearing held on November 7, 2014, the Honorable Larry B Hyman, Jr , granted the motion and ruled that, in light of Defendant McGinley's criminal charges having been expunged, no party was permitted to reference McGinley's arrest in either the pleadings or before the jury

denying any negligence on its part and asserting, as an affirmative defense, that Appellant had failed to state a viable cause of action against it for corporate negligence.

The trial of this case began on January 12, 2015. During jury selection, the Hospital moved to be dismissed pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), SCRCPP, on the grounds that Appellant had failed to allege facts sufficient to state a cause of action against it. The circuit court granted the Hospital's motion during oral argument, ruling that South Carolina does not recognize a cause of action for negligent credentialing arising out of a corporate negligence theory. A written Order followed and was filed on February 3, 2015. (R pp. 1-2)

On February 6, 2015, Appellant received notice of the entry of the Order. Appellant timely served her Notice of Appeal on February 12, 2015.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The following factual allegations are all set forth in the Second Amended Complaint (cited hereinafter as "Compl."). Because the Hospital was dismissed from this action on a motion pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), SCRCPP, these allegations must be taken as true for purposes of this appeal.

Prior to and during the month of October 2005, McGinley unlawfully obtained prescription narcotics by creating false identifications and prescribing those narcotics to his aliases. (R. p. 22, ¶ 14.) McGinley obtained prescription narcotics by using false identities on 10-20 occasions (R. p. 22, ¶ 14, p. 51, ln. 13-25.) As a result of that conduct, McGinley's medical license was suspended by the South Carolina Board of Medical Examiners ("Medical Board"). (R. p. 22, ¶ 14.)

In its June 2006 Final Order, the Medical Board determined that McGinley violated multiple laws, regulations, and principles of medical ethics. (R. p. 22, ¶15; p. 138-140.)

The Medical Board further found that McGinley was “not dedicated to providing competent medical service with compassion and respect for human dignity,” that he “did not respect the law,” and that he was “guilty of engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct that is likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public.” (R. p. 22, ¶ 15; p. 139.) All of the allegations made against him by the Medical Board were admitted by McGinley. (R. p. 23, ¶ 16; p. 136, p. 52, ln. 24 - p. 53, ln. 16.)

Despite being aware of McGinley’s criminal, fraudulent, and unethical conduct, the Hospital reappointed McGinley to its medical staff and continued its contractual relationship with him and his pathology practice. (R. p. 23, ¶ 17.) Rather than terminate his appointment to the medical staff and his privileges at the Hospital, he was permitted instead to take a personal leave of absence for a short period of time before coming back to work. His qualifications for privileges and appointment to the medical staff were not considered upon his return. (R. p. 55, ln. 17-p. 56, ln. 3; p. 57, ln. 7-14.)

The Hospital held itself out to the public, including Mr. Holliday, as a modern medical facility and well-staffed hospital that included trained and skilled physicians. (R. p. 20, ¶ 5.) It held each of its physicians responsible for the care, supervision, and protection of Mr. Holliday out to the public and to Mr. Holliday as qualified physicians licensed to practice under the laws of the State of South Carolina (R. p. 20, ¶ 6.) At all times relevant hereto, McGinley held privileges to practice pathology at the Hospital. (R. p. 22, ¶ 13.)

The Hospital had a duty to provide Mr. Holliday with competent medical care by ethical physicians (R. p. 23, ¶ 22.) It was required to exercise ordinary and reasonable care in the selection and retention of its physicians, contractors, and medical staff. (R. p. 20, ¶ 7.) The Hospital also had a duty to appoint to its medical staff only those physicians that

were “competent in [their] respective field[s], worthy in character and in matters of professional ethics, and [met] the requirements of the hospital’s bylaws.” (R. p. 23, ¶ 23; see 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-16, § 504(B).) The Hospital had an additional duty to use reasonable and ordinary care in determining whether a physician met these criteria prior to both the physician’s initial appointment and any later periodic reappointments. (R. p. 24, ¶ 24; see 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-16, § 504(A).)

The Hospital’s own Medical Staff Bylaws address its duties as well “Every practitioner who seeks or enjoys Medical Staff membership must, at the time of application and continuously thereafter, demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Medical Staff and the Board [of Trustees]” . . . “[a]dherence to applicable ethical codes of conduct. . . .” (R. pp. 181-182, § 2H.) “Personal conduct, whether verbal or physical, that negatively affects or that potentially may affect patient care . . . constitutes disruptive behavior.” (R. p. 214, § 2) Examples of punishable disruptive conduct include, but are not limited to, . . . [l]ying, cheating, and knowingly making false accusations, [and] altering or falsifying any patient’s medical records or hospital documents.” (R. p. 214, § 3D.)

The Hospital’s duties are further defined in its Appointment and Reappointment Procedures for Medical Staff Membership and Clinical Privileges “In conducting the Medical Staff application review, the [Medical Executive Committee] shall initially examine the Medical Staff application for evidence of character, professional competence, qualifications, prior experience, and ethical standing of the practitioner.” (R. p. 155, § 1G(1)(a).)

Requests for Clinical Privileges shall be evaluated on the basis of the Practitioner's background, education, training, experience, health, ability, and judgment, demonstrated competence, adherence to professional ethics, reputation, ability to work well with others, references and other relevant

information, including an appraisal by the Department to which the Practitioner is or would be assigned . . . All criteria set forth in the applicable qualifications of the Medical Staff Bylaws shall also be considered for determination of Clinical Privileges.

(R. p. 162, § 2B.) “The Board [of Trustees] is ultimately responsible for all decisions regarding Medical Staff appointment and reappointment, and the determination of Clinical Privileges, taking into consideration the documents and information concerning the [Medical Executive Committee’s] preliminary recommendations and other supporting documentation or information ” (R. p. 156, § 1H(1))

Turning to the medical care received by David Holliday, Mr. Holliday’s gallbladder was surgically removed by Dr Anthony deHaas at the Hospital on July 19, 2007, after having gone to the emergency room complaining of pain in his abdomen. (R. p. 24, ¶ 25.) During removal, the gallbladder was placed in an endoscopic retrieval bag and sent to McGinley, a pathologist, for processing. (R. p 24, ¶ 25.) McGinley did not include any diagnosis of or concern about a potential malignancy, nor did he require or suggest any additional testing. (R. p 24, ¶ 26) Although the specimen contained evidence of malignancy, McGinley failed to detect or diagnose the condition. (R. p. 24, ¶ 26)

On December 28, 2010, Mr. Holliday presented to Dr. deHaas, the surgeon that removed his gallbladder in 2007, complaining of pain in his upper abdomen. (R. p. 24 ¶ 25; p. 25, ¶ 31) Dr. deHaas recommended removal of the abnormal tissue and scheduled surgery for January 13, 2011, at the Hospital. (R. p. 25, ¶ 31.) During the surgery, Dr. deHaas removed part of the tumor and sent the tissue to the Hospital’s Pathology Department for processing. (R. p. 26, ¶ 32.) The pathology examination revealed cancer, caused by undiagnosed cancer from Mr. Holliday’s gallbladder (R. p. 26, ¶ 33; p 27, ¶¶ 36-37.)

On March 9, 2011, Mr. Holliday began chemotherapy at MUSC in Charleston and continued with this treatment until approximately August 2012. (R. p. 28, ¶ 40.) In addition, he underwent approximately thirty radiation treatments (R. p. 28, ¶ 40.)

The Hospital negligently failed to provide Mr. Holliday with a pathologist who was competent in the field of pathology, worthy in character and in matters of professional ethics, and that met the requirements of the Hospital's bylaws (R. p. 33, ¶ 56.) The Hospital was further negligent in.

- failing to independently monitor McGinley following his discipline by the Medical Board and upon his return to work at the Hospital;
- failing to revoke McGinley's hospital privileges and appointment to the medical staff when it learned of his unethical, fraudulent, criminal actions and unfitness of character,
- reappointing McGinley to the medical staff and renewing his hospital privileges after learning of his unethical, fraudulent, criminal actions and unfitness of character; and
- continuing its contractual relationship with McGinley and his pathology practice after learning of his unethical, fraudulent, criminal actions and unfitness of character.

(R. p. 33, ¶ 56.)

As a result of the Hospital's negligence, Mr. Holliday's cancer went undiagnosed and untreated for approximately three-and-a-half years, causing the cancer to spread to his abdominal wall and liver and develop into a Stage IV disease, ultimately causing his death.

(R. p. 28, ¶ 41; p. 33, ¶ 57.)

Mr. Holliday died on November 13, 2012. (R. p. 28, ¶ 42.) His autopsy reported the cause of death as metastatic biliary carcinoma. (R. p. 28, ¶ 42.)

ARGUMENT

I. SOUTH CAROLINA COURTS SHOULD RECOGNIZE A CAUSE OF ACTION FOR NEGLIGENT CREDENTIALING.³

A. Summary of Appellant's argument.

By asking that this Court join the overwhelming majority of states and recognize a cause of action for negligent credentialing, Appellant is seeking to hold the Hospital directly liable for its failure to exercise reasonable care in the selection and retention of McGinley as a member of its medical staff. To be clear, the liability that is imposed by a negligent credentialing cause of action is not a type of vicarious liability nor is Appellant asking the Court to extend the application of the non-delegable duty doctrine. Negligent credentialing is often described as a form of corporate negligence. "Corporate negligence, which literally means holding a corporation liable for its negligent acts, is a form of direct liability" Simmons v. Tuomey Reg'l Med. Ctr., 330 S.C. 115, 123, 498 S.E.2d 408, 412 (Ct App. 1998) ("Simmons I") aff'd as modified, 341 S.C. 32, 533 S.E.2d 312 (2000) (distinguishing between the direct liability of corporate negligence in the context of a hospital's duty to monitor the competency of its staff physicians and non-delegable duty). "Corporate negligence," in the context of a hospital's duty to exercise reasonable care in granting privileges to a physician, is "nothing more than an application of negligence

³ The credentialing process involves both the appointment to a hospital's medical staff and the granting of privileges. The distinction has been described as follows: "[S]taff membership is a prerequisite for a physician to admit patients to the hospital and provide health care services in the hospital. Individual members of the medical staff are granted specific 'clinical privileges' according to their license, education, training, experience, competence, health status, and judgment. These delineated privileges are authorization for 'a practitioner to provide specific care services within well-defined limits.' Staff membership and clinical privileges are related but separate concepts. The grant of medical staff membership does not assure the grant of any particular requested clinical privileges. Different staff members are entitled to different clinical privileges, a member of a medical staff who is a radiologist may be granted clinical privileges in radiology but not, for example, in anesthesiology." Craig W. Dallon, Understanding Judicial Review of Hospitals' Physician Credentialing and Peer Review Decisions, 73 Temp. L. Rev. 597, 607-08 (2000).

principles.” Blanton v. Moses H. Cone Mem’l Hosp , Inc., 354 S.E.2d 455 (N.C. 1987) (“In light of the position we have taken in this opinion that the case is governed by common law principles of negligence and that what has previously been called corporate negligence is nothing more than an application of negligence principles”).

Today’s hospitals are big business. They are plentiful, they are profitable, and they compete for the public’s business. They market their services through billboards, commercials, and printed advertisements that boast that they have the most skilled physicians, the most advanced technology, and the most comfortable facilities.

The public is generally unaware that most physicians practicing at any given hospital are not, in fact, employees of that hospital. They are independent contractors that have been given permission, or “credentials,” by the hospital to practice medicine at the hospital’s facility. The credentialing process is regulated by the law of this state, by the hospital’s own bylaws, and, in some cases, by national accreditation standards. Credentials and privileges may only be granted to those physicians who have been vetted by a hospital’s governing body and which it determines meet the criteria set forth by state law and the hospital’s bylaws.

The public is forced to rely on a hospital to use care in the credentialing process. When a hospital fails to do so, the public is exposed to substantial risk of injury.

The existence of a negligent credentialing cause of action is supported by the laws, regulations, and public policy of this State. It is time for South Carolina to join the overwhelming majority of jurisdictions which recognize the existence of a duty on the part of a hospital to use reasonable care in the selection and retention of members of its medical staff.

B. A negligent credentialing cause of action is consistent with established hospital duties and existing general negligence principles.

It is well-established that hospitals owe their patients a duty of care in the provision of health care and related services and in the operation of their facilities. See Doe by Doe v. Greenville Hosp. Sys., 323 S.C. 33, 448 S.E.2d 564 (Ct. App. 1994) (hospital held liable for negligent hiring and supervision of employee); Sloan v. Edgewood Sanatorium, Inc., 225 S.C. 1, 80 S.E.2d 348 (1954) (a psychiatric hospital owes a duty of care to properly supervise and treat a suicidal patient); Henderson v. St. Francis Cmty. Hosp., 303 S.C. 177, 399 S.E.2d 767 (1990) (hospital has a duty to maintain its premises in reasonably safe condition); Dawkins v. Union Hosp. Dist., 408 S.C. 171, 758 S.E.2d 501 (2014) (slip-and-fall case against hospital sounded in ordinary negligence rather than medical malpractice wherein supreme court noted that “claims against a hospital for injuries caused by falling ceiling tiles or improperly maintained hallways or parking lots sound in ordinary negligence, and specifically in premises liability.”) (citations omitted); Force v. Richland Mem’l Hosp., 322 S.C. 283, 471 S.E.2d 714 (Ct. App. 1996) (premises liability claim against hospital for negligently maintained automatic sliding doors in emergency room).

As recognized by the South Carolina Supreme Court, “[t]he ‘practice of medicine’ encompasses a much broader range of actions than those specific directives” and “includes innumerable decisions regarding the type and quality of medical equipment, staffing levels, and the renovation or addition of facilities.” Simmons v. Tuomey Reg’l Med. Ctr., 341 S.C. 32, 49-50, 533 S.E.2d 312, 321 (2000) (“Simmons II”). These decisions, which “intimately affect the ‘practice of medicine’ all day, every day” are often made by hospitals and their administrators. Id. (citing Jeannie Pinkston, Negligence: Strubhart v. Perry Memorial Hospital, 48 Okla. L. Rev. 797, 804 (1995) (stating the oft-quoted adage that “hospitals

don't practice medicine, physicians do" no longer reflects public perception of a modern hospital, which has assumed the role of a profit-producing business and aggressively markets itself as an administrator and provider of comprehensive health care)).

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