THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

RECEIVED

APR 24 2015

APPEAL FROM GEORGETOWN COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

SC Court of Appeals

Diane S. Goodstein, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2015-000331
Case #2012-CP-22-1004

Nadene Holliday, Individually and as Personal Representative
of the Estate of David Holliday,Appellant,

vs.

Waccamaw Community Hospital and
Kent M. McGinley, M.D.,Defendants,

of whom

Waccamaw Community Hospital isRespondent.

RESPONDENT'S FINAL BRIEF

William W. Doar, Jr., S.C. Bar #1698
Richard M. Smith, S.C. Bar #7967
MCNAIR LAW FIRM, P.A.
P.O. Box 1469
Pawleys Island, S.C. 29585
(843) 235-4113 (p)
(843) 235-4234 (f)

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

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

(1) sentinel event investigations or root cause analyses, or both, as prescribed by the joint commission or any other organization under whose accreditation a hospital is deemed to meet the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services’ conditions of participation;

(2) investigations into the competence or conduct of hospital employees, agents, members of the hospital’s medical staff or other practitioners, relating to the quality of patient care, and any disciplinary proceedings or fair hearings related thereto, provided the medical staff operates pursuant to written bylaws that have been approved by the governing body of the hospital;

(3) quality assurance reviews,

(4) the medical staff credentialing process, provided the medical staff operates pursuant to written bylaws that have been approved by the governing body of the hospital. (Emphasis added).

(5) Reports by a hospital to its insurance carriers;

(6) reviews or investigations to evaluate the quality of care provided by hospital employees, agents, members of the hospital’s medical staff, or other practitioners; or

(7) reports or statements including, but not limited to, those reports or statements to the National Practitioner Data Bank and the South Carolina Board of Medical Examiners, that provide analysis or opinion (including external reviews) relating to the

quality of care provided by hospital employees, agents, members of the hospital's medical staff, or other practitioners.”

This Section was effective June 26, 2012. The Plaintiff concedes in her Brief that the credentialing process at Respondent Hospital is regulated by the hospital's own bylaws. (R. p. 68, lines 7-9). *See also* S.C Code Ann. 44-7-392(d)(2012) which prevents even the discovery or subpoena of the medical staff credentialing process in a civil action.

Respondent submits that even though S.C Code Ann 44-7-390 (2012) was enacted after Dr. McGinley misread the Holliday gall bladder pathology slide on July 19, 2007, it was enacted before Mr. Holliday died on November 13, 2012 and before the Plaintiff filed her Second Amended Complaint dated July 24, 2014, which was filed July 24, 2014, and was the first time the Appellant alleged negligent credentialing. Further, the enactment of S.C. Code Ann. 44-7-390 (2012) represents the public policy of South Carolina.

Since the South Carolina General Assembly has spoken rejecting a cause of action for negligent credentialing against a hospital, that should end the matter as to Respondent and the Appellant should simply proceed with her medical negligence case against Dr. McGinley.

ARGUMENT II

SOUTH CAROLINA'S PUBLIC POLICY ENCOURAGES CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY TREATMENT WITHOUT RECRIMINATION

South Carolina has clearly stated its public policy regarding encouraging treatment of chemical dependency in S.C. Code Ann 44-52-5 (1986).

“It is the policy of the State to assist individuals with chemical dependency problems in ways consistent with the dignity, rights and responsibilities of all South Carolina citizens. Within available resources, it is the duty of the State, in coordination with its local counter-parts, to treat, reduce, eliminate and prevent the abuse of alcohol and drugs through a service delivery system structured to meet the needs of the clients in the most therapeutic setting, and to maximize their quality of life

The State shall develop a public service system designed to provide a continuum of services for client at the State and local level while considering the availability of services in the private sector.”

In addition to the public policy articulated in S.C. Code Ann. 44-52-5 (1986), the South Carolina Code is replete and expressly provides for the encouragement of persons suffering from chemical dependency to seek treatment without concern of recrimination or adverse consequence. This is precisely the purpose of Talbott and the R.P.P. In particular, S.C. Code Ann. 44-53-140 (1962) provides that whenever a holder of the privilege¹ shall seek counseling, treatment or therapy for any drug problem from a confidant,² no statement made by such holder and no observation or conclusion derived from such confidant shall be admissible against such holder in any proceeding. The results of any examination to determine the existence of Illegal or prohibited drugs in the holder’s body shall not be admissible in any proceeding against such holder.

As Appellant begrudgingly admits, there is no evidence that Dr McGinley was under the influence of any substance when he allegedly misread a slide of Appellant’s spouse. (R. p. 84, lines 19-24, p. 110, lines 24-25, p. 111, lines 1-7).

Notwithstanding this lack of evidence, Appellant contends that Dr. McGinley’s character and ethics were so fundamentally flawed by his past impairment that Respondent should be found liable in negligence for granting privileges to him³. This argument is without merit.

¹ “Holder of the privilege” means “a person with an existing or a potential drug problem who seeks counseling, treatment, or therapy regarding such drug problem.” See S C Code Ann 44-53-110(21) (1962)

² “Confidant” means “ any professional or paraprofessional staff member of a drug treatment, education, rehabilitation, or referral center who has received a communication from a holder of the privilege.” See S C Code Ann 44-53-110(5) (1962)

³ Although Appellant asserts several alleged negligent acts by Respondent vis-à-vis Dr McGinley, e.g., failure to supervise Dr McGinley upon return to work, all are premised upon the past chemical dependency of Dr McGinley. In other words, but for the prior chemical dependency of Dr McGinley, none of the other requirements Appellant seeks to place upon Respondent would be required.

Argument III

EVEN IF THE COURT IS INCLINED TO CREATE A CAUSE OF ACTION FOR NEGLIGENT CREDENTIALING AND TO GIVE IT RETROSPECTIVE EFFECT, THE TRIAL COURT'S DISMISSAL SHOULD BE AFFIRMED BECAUSE THE HARM THAT OCCURRED HAD NO CONNECTION TO THE CONDUCT THAT ALLEGEDLY SHOULD HAVE CAUSED THE HOSPITAL TO DENY PRIVILEGES NOR WAS IT A SUBSTANTIAL FACTOR IN ANY INJURY ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN SUFFERED BY THE APPELLANT

Appellant cites a series of cases for the proposition that because some states have created a cause of action for negligent credentialing, South Carolina should do likewise. However, Appellant overlooks the fact of S.C. Code Ann. 44-7-390 (2012).

Furthermore, only one of the string of cases, namely, Domingo by and through Domingo v Doe, 985 F. Supp. 1241 (D. Haw. 1997) aff'd sub nom. Domingo v. T. K., 289 F3d. 600 (9th Cir 2002) involves substance abuse issues. In Domingo the action against the hospital was dismissed for lack of causation. Additionally, several of the cases cited by Appellant support Respondent's position that the harm caused must be connected to the conduct that should have caused Respondent to deny privileges to Dr. McGinley. Diaz v. Feil, 118 N M. 385, 881 P.2d 745 (1994) (Hospital did not breach duty to plaintiff because it did not have notice of doctor's alleged incompetence in providing prenatal care;) Rodrigues v Miriam Hosp., 623 A.2d 456 (R.I. 1993) (Hospital did not breach duty to plaintiff because customary investigation would not have revealed doctor's incompetence in performing tracheostomies;) Crumley v. Memorial Hosp., Inc., 509 F. Supp 531 (E.D. Tenn 1979) aff'd, 647 F.2d 164 (6th Cir. 1981) (Hospital did not breach duty to plaintiff because prior instances of similar conduct were not enough to show that doctor was an incompetent anesthesiologist;) Hull v. North Valley Hosp, 159 Mont. 375, 498 P.2d 136 (1972) (Hospital did not breach duty to plaintiff because prior revocation of privileges were not enough to put hospital on notice that doctor was incompetent surgeon;) Bost v. Riley, 44 N.C. App. 638, 262 S.E.2d 391 (1980); (Hospital's alleged breach of duty in taking no action against surgeons' failure to keep progress notes was not shown to be a contributing factor to the patient's death;) Ferguson v. Gonyaw, 64 Mich. App. 685 (1975) (Hospital not liable because no evidence that a reasonable check of qualifications would have resulted in a denial of credentials

since doctor was qualified as an osteopathic neurosurgeon.) Taylor v. Singing River Hosp., 704 So.2d 75 (Miss. 1997) (Hospital not liable because no causal connection between hospital's failure to discover doctor's falsification of her credentials and death of patient.) Respondent submits that its alleged credentialing negligence, which is denied, must be a substantial factor in bringing about the harm to the Appellant. Thompson v Nason Hosp., 527 Pa. 330, 591 A.2d 703 (1991).

Therefore, we submit the earlier chemical dependency of Dr McGinley was not a substantial factor in the injury suffered by the Appellant. The trial court's dismissal of Respondent from the case should be affirmed.

Argument IV

EVIDENCE OF PRIOR CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY IS IRRELEVANT ABSENT EVIDENCE THAT DEFENDANT DOCTOR WAS UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF DRUGS AT THE TIME OF THE ALLEGED MALPRACTICE

As a general rule, character evidence is not admissible to prove that a person acted in conformity therewith on a particular occasion. Rule 404(a), SCRE. Rule 404(a), SCRE does have exceptions which are not applicable in this instance. Likewise, evidence of other wrong acts is "not admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show action in conformity therewith" Rule 404(b) SCRE⁴

The Appellant desires to paint Respondent and Dr. McGinley with a stigma of incompetence based upon prior acts of poor judgment, i.e., drug use. As noted, there is no evidence of his being impaired at the time of the alleged malpractice at issue. In this

⁴ Numerous professions are regulated in South Carolina and have as a requirement for admission a showing of good character. See e.g., 402(c)(2)SCRAP, "No person shall be admitted to the practice of law in South Carolina unless the person is of good moral character." A prospective accountant must not have a history of dishonest or felonious acts. S.C. Code Ann. 40-2-35(A)(5) (2004). "A prospective insurance agent cannot have a conviction involving moral turpitude." S.C. Code Ann. 38-43-100 (F)(2) (2008). "The insurance company employing the agent must investigate the character and record of the prospective agent and vouch to the Insurance Commission that he or she is trustworthy and intends to hold himself or herself out in good faith as an insurance agent." S.C. Code Ann. 38-43-50 (1987). Merely because good character is a prerequisite to entering the profession does not ipse dixit place character at issue whenever a professional is accused of malpractice. To hold otherwise would put general character at issue for all professionals rather than limiting it to those rare cases where the alleged character failing is causative of the injury suffered by the Plaintiff.

case, the alleged character evidence is only intended to create undue prejudice against the hospital and the physician without any probative value at all.

When the General Assembly has so clearly spoken as to the public policy, S.C. Code Ann. 44-52-5 (1986), in encouraging drug treatment and has additionally spoken on the absence of liability for credentialing decisions, S.C. Code Ann. 44-7-390(4) (2012), the Court should affirm the Lower Court. This is particularly so in order to promote the willingness of those suffering from chemical dependency to seek treatment.

In the case of McVay v. Rich, 255 Kan. 371, 874 P.2d 641 (1994), the Kansas Supreme Court was faced with a similar question, i.e., whether a legislative enactment should bar certain medical claims against a hospital. The Appellant contended that the Respondent hospital should be liable for injuries suffered by the patient when the allegedly negligent surgeon committed malpractice and Plaintiff was injured. The Kansas statute, although different from the South Carolina statute, provided that there was no liability for a hospital when the alleged malpractice was committed by a person who was not an employee or agent of the hospital. The Court reviewed the statute and an associated statute regarding funding and determined that when the legislature had made its policies clear, they would not second guess the wisdom of the decision and affirmed the grant of the summary judgment in favor of the hospital.

In the case of Paulino v. QHG of Springdale, Inc., 386 S.W.3d 462 (2012), the Arkansas Supreme Court upheld the decision of the lower court to the effect that the Arkansas Medical Malpractice Act did not confer a cause of action for negligent credentialing. The lower court also found the absence of a causative link between the hospital and the injury claimed by the Plaintiff.

Additionally, South Carolina has recognized that the introduction of evidence concerning prior chemical dependency is irrelevant when there is not causation between the alleged chemical dependency and the alleged wrong act. In State v. Atchison, 268 S.C. 588, 235 S.E.2d. 294 (1977), the Defendant in a murder case desired to introduce testimony regarding the decedent's use of drugs. The alleged grounds were to prove the decedent was violent when on drugs. The Trial Court excluded the evidence and on

appeal the conviction was affirmed. The Court quoted with approval People v. Moretti, 6 Ill (2d) 494, 129 N E.2d 709 (1955), *cert den* 356 U.S. 947, 78 S.Ct. 794, 2 L.Ed.(2d) 822 wherein the Defendant sought to introduce evidence that the victim had been addicted to drugs fourteen months before an alleged homicide. The Court in Moretti analogized that case involving drugs to an earlier case, State v. Ricks, 170 La. 507, 128 So. 293 (1930) which involved alcohol addiction. The Court found that “Even if the habit of the deceased as to drinking and proof of specific facts were admissible, such evidence in the present case would be wholly irrelevant and immaterial, as there is no proof that the deceased was intoxicated at the time of the homicide. His alleged turbulent and dangerous character, when under the influence of liquor on other occasions, is therefore beside the question.” The Court in Moretti excluded the evidence because there was no proof that the decedent was under the influence of drugs at the time the homicide occurred Likewise, in State v. Atchison, the Court noted that there was no evidence that the decedent was under the influence of drugs at the time he was killed and found no error in exclusion of the evidence.

Consequently, in the present case the introduction of past chemical dependency of Dr. McGinley serves no purpose other than a character attack for a trait which is not at issue in this action, i.e., his soberness at the time of the alleged malpractice. The admission is also contrary to the public policy of the state to encourage chemical dependency treatment without recrimination. Therefore, because there is no causation associated with Dr. McGinley’s prior chemical dependency, the dismissal by Judge Goodstein was appropriate in this action.

Argument V

THE APPELLANT CANNOT ESTABLISH PROXIMATE CAUSE IN THIS CASE

The Plaintiff argues that Respondent should have revoked or not reappointed Dr. McGinley to its medical staff after learning of his drug use prior to and during the month of October, 2005.

This argument has no merit. Since there is no evidence of impairment on the part of Dr. McGinley on July 19, 2007, even if negligent credentialing was a recognized cause of action in South Carolina, which it is not, the required proof of proximate cause is lacking. Neither the required but for nor foreseeability test of proximate cause can be established by the Appellant in this case. Having been monitored for fifteen months without incident, we submit it was not possible for the Respondent to have foreseen that Dr. McGinley would have misread the Holliday pathology slide. We submit that Appellant cannot prove either legal or in fact causation in this case. Dr. McGinley's alleged deficiency was purely of a personal nature. There is no evidence that any other patient was negligently impacted by Dr. McGinley's chemical impairment either before or after his treatment. This is not a case which is often seen in credentialing cases such as numerous prior botched surgeries and malpractice suits.

We note that Judge Goodstein was also concerned about proximate cause (R. pp. 75-77). However, since she found no cause of action, she did not have to reach the issue of proximate cause.

ADDITIONAL SUSTAINING GROUNDS

Even if the Court creates the new cause of action of negligent credentialing the holding must apply prospectively only.

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